
Hartford City Council Agenda 

Tuesday, December 7, 2021 – 7:00 p.m. 

Hartford City Hall 

 Mayor: Jeremy Menning 

Ward 1: Mark Brenneman and Travis Kuehl Ward 

2: Mark Monahan and Mark O’Hara 

 Ward 3: LaVonne Randall and Arden Jones 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Business Items 

• Roll Call of Mayor and City Council Members 

• Additions to the Agenda/Approve Agenda 

• Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 

  *Regular Meeting Minutes – 11/16/2021 

• Approve Bills submitted for Payment (if any) 

 

Public Comments – Public Input on Non-Agenda Items (Comments Limited to 5 minutes per speaker) 

*Action cannot be taken on items discussed unless specifically listed elsewhere on the agenda* 

 

 

Visitors 

• Recognition of Harford Bike & Rec Committee 

 

Applications, Agreements, Hearings, Resolutions & Ordinances 

• 2nd Reading of Ordinance #720 – Lot 10 S of Hwy 38 (Ex Sunnyside Addition of Smith & Grover’s 

Addition & the E 80’ of Lot 7, Block 1 of Sunnyside Addition. Request to rezone from 

Residential to Community Commercial  

• Resolution 2021-14 – Transfer of Contingency Funds  

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #721 – 2021 Supplemental Appropriation 

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #722 – Redistricting Voting Wards 

• Review/Approve Cannabis Application(s) for Dakota Cannabliss 

• Review/Approve Cannabis Application for Grow Farms 

• Review/Approve Cannabis Application for Genesis Farms, LLC 

• Review/Approve Cannabis Application for HomeTown Budz LLC 

 

 

Reports 

• Minnehaha Sheriff Deputy Report – Deputy Kardas 

• Chamber and Economic Development Director Report – Amy M. Farr 

• City Engineer Report – David Doxtad with ISG Inc. 

• Public Works Superintendent Report – Craig Wagner  

• Finance Officer Report – Karen Wilber 

• City Administrator Report –Teresa Sidel 

 

Old Business 

• Request to release 2021 Budget Funds 

- Hartford Fire Department - $12,000 operating funds 

- Hartford Senior Center - $9,000 operating funds 

- Humboldt Ambulance - $22,500 operating funds 

• Review Insurance Quotes 

• Mayoral Appointments to Park & Recreation Board 

 

New Business 

• Discuss Possibly moving Municipal Election Date 

 

 

 

Executive Session (SDCL 1-25-2) (SDCL 9-34-19) 

  

Adjournment 

 

Next Regular City Council Meeting: Tuesday, December 21, 2021 



City Council Meeting – Regular Meeting November 16, 2021  

 
Council President Arden Jones called the meeting to order at 7:00pm at Hartford City Hall with the following city council 

members present:  Mark Monahan and Mark O’Hara. Lavonne Randall was present via teleconference. Mayor Jeremy 

Menning, Mark Brenneman and Travis Kuehl were absent with notice.  Also present were City Administrator Teresa Sidel, 

City Finance Officer Karen Wilber, Public Works Superintendent Craig Wagner, Chamber & Economic Development Director 

Amy Farr, City Engineers David Doxtad & Michael Redenbaugh and approximately 9 people from the public. 

 

BUSINESS ITEMS: 

• Approve Agenda:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by O’Hara to approve the agenda as set - all voted yes, 

motion carried. 

• Approval of the Minutes:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by O’Hara to approve the regular meeting 

minutes from Nov 2, 2021 – all voted yes, motion carried. 

• Approval of the Bills:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by O’Hara to approve the bills submitted for 

payment – all voted yes, motion carried. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

 

ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, APPLICATIONS, AGREEMENTS AND HEARINGS: 

• Special Event Application – Hartford Hometown Christmas:  Lisa Hellvig, on behalf of Hartford Hometown 

Christmas, submitted a special event application for the Hartford Hometown Christmas event to be held Dec 5th. 

Activities will be similar to previous years – parade, vendor show, fireworks, firepit, etc. The following road closures 

are being requested for the parade: Main Ave - 2nd St to Menth St at 11am; Main Ave - Hwy 38 to South St at 4pm; 

South St – Main Ave to Western Ave at 4pm. All road closures to re-open at the conclusion of the parade – approx. 

6:30pm. Also requesting use of the city shop for parade coordination and the use of city staff during the event. A 

motion was made by Monahan, second by O’Hara to approve the Hartford Hometown Christmas special event permit 

and to allow the use of city staff & facilities during the event – all voted yes, motion carried. 

• 7:05 Public Hearing – Liquor License Renewals:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by Randall, to approve 

all liquor licenses as presented – all voted yes, motion carried. 

• 7:10 Public Hearing & 1st Reading of Ordinance #720 to Rezone Lot 10 S of Hwy 38 (Ex Sunnyside Estate) of 

Smith & Grover’s Addition & the E 80’ of Lot 7, Block 1 of Sunnyside Estate Addition from Residential to 

Community Commercial:  Heart-Fjord Investments and Mash Properties, LLC have submitted the application for 

zoning change. Mash Properties, LLC is in the process of purchasing this land and intends to open an ice cream shop. 

The Planning & Zoning board reviewed this rezone request at their last meeting and is recommending approval to the 

City Council. A motion was made by Monahan, seconded by Randall to approve 1st Reading of Ordinance #720 to 

rezone Lot 10 S of Hwy 38 (Ex Sunnyside Estate) of Smith & Grover’s Addition & the E 80’ of Lot 7, Block 1 of 

Sunnyside Estate Addition from Residential to Community Commercial – all voted yes, motion carried. 
• Resolution 2021-11 Intent to Lease Real Property:  The current farm lease on City owned land – Tract 1 & 2 of 

Hartford Hills Addition – is due to expire on Feb 29, 2022. The current lessee is interested in extending this lease. 

Resolution 2021-11 would extend the current lease, with the same lease terms and conditions, for another year. A 

motion was made by Monahan, second by O’Hara to approve Resolution 2021-11 Intent to Lease Real Property – all 

voted yes, motion carried. 

 

REPORTS: 

• Fire Department Report:  Fire Chief Matt Horn was present to give a department update to the council. There was a 

total of 22 calls in Oct with 10 in city limits. Horn also provided an update on the various trainings held during the 

month of Oct. As in years past, the department handed out glow sticks for Halloween. 

• Chamber & Economic Development Director Report:  Amy Farr’s report was provided. Chamber activities: 

continues to plan/schedule events & meetings and post to social media; e-newsletter is being sent out weekly; fall 

newsletter to be mailed this week; held annual meeting on Nov 8th. HADF activities: continues to meet with 

landowners and respond to RFI’s; Envision2025 held their board meeting Nov 10th; held annual meeting on Nov 9th; 

continues work with ISG on community development planning.  

• Engineer Report:  David Doxtad reported the following:  

o Development work is ongoing: Western Meadows, Knapp’s Landing & Turtle Creek Highlands. 

 Western Meadows Phase 4 improvements, including roadway, utility, and sitework, are now complete 

and all punch list items have been addressed. Resolution 2021-13 to accept the street & utility 

improvements was presented. A motion was made by Monahan, second by O’Hara to approve 

Resolution 2021-13 accepting street & utility improvements for Phase 4 of Western Meadows Addition 

per the recommendation of city engineers – all voted yes, motion carried.  

o Work has begun on construction documents for the 6th St/Mundt Ave project. 



o Work continues on the facility plan for the WWTF. The deadline to file this plan with DANR is Jan 1, 2022.  

o Work continues on the community development plan with future input meetings being planned. 

Gary Meyer, who resides south of Hartford in Minnehaha County, addressed City engineers and the Council regarding 

the proposed location of the WWTF. Discussion was held regarding road access to the location.  

• Public Works Report:  Public Works Superintendent Wagner’s report was provided.  

Streets –  Blading of gravel roads continues as needed. Staff will be doing a few more concrete repairs yet this fall. 

Wagner will start compiling information for next year’s slurry seal project. Staff is prepping equipment for the 

upcoming snow removal season. Street sweeping will continue until the weather turns. The speed trailer is currently 

on Mickelson Rd. but will be move to Hwy 38 next week. The 2-way plow has been ordered for delivery in Jan 2022.     

Water – Meter change outs continue with approx. 370 more to do. The next quarterly report is due Jan 2022. DANR 

did a water inspection in Oct. We are awaiting that report.  

Sewer –  All reporting is done until Dec.           

Sports Complex – Delivery of ag-lime for the two new ball fields continues.    

• Finance Officer Report:  City Finance Officer Wilber’s report was provided. Items included cash balances, sales tax 

revenue and committee fund balances as of Oct 31st, a recap of bills submitted for payment and the calendar of events.    

• City Administrator Report:  City Administrator Sidel’s report was provided. The City awaits the agreement from 

the State on the bike trail grant.  Sidel has asked ISG to put together a proposal for council review for engineering 

services on the storm shelter project. FEMA has given its approval of the Mickelson Road project.  Once notices are 

sent to affected property owners, the project will be completed. Warranty inspections have been completed on both the 

9th Street & Ruud/Opal Ln projects.  Punch list items were sent to the contractor on Sept 30th.  A two-year warranty 

inspection will be conducted on the utilities next year. Upcoming agenda items: supplemental appropriation for 2021, 

possibly changing the City’s election date, discussion with engineers on construction management of the WWTF.  The 

City has received its first cannabis application.  This will come before the council for approval at a later date. The 

final inspection on the Mickelson lift station generator was good.  We can now submit our invoices to FEMA for 

reimbursement.  One parttime snow removal position has been hired.  The city continues to take application for this 

position. Four candidates were interviewed for the Building Inspector/Code Enforcer position.  Sidel will discuss 

further with the Council in Executive Session. Discussion was held on possibly purchasing a second staff vehicle to be 

used by this new position. It was the consensus of the Council that the position be hired before we move forward with 

the purchase of an additional vehicle.                  

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

• Review/Discuss Redistricting Proposal for Voting Wards:  The new census has been done and Hartford has had a 

growth rate of 34%.  With this growth, the population distribution for the City’s three voting wards has shifted.  In 

order to distribute the population of the wards more equitably, SECOG has drafted three possible alternative ward 

maps.  At the Oct 5th meeting the Council reviewed these maps and changes were suggested.  Sidel had SECOG make 

a 4th alternative taking these changes into account.  In an effort to have the community’s input, the redistricting 

proposals were put on the City’s website and information was provided in the Nov newsletter.  No public comments 

were received. An ordinance change would be required to make any adjustments to the voting wards.  A motion was 

made by Monahan, second by Randall to proceed with drafting an ordinance to set the voting wards as illustrated in 

Alternative #4 – all voted yes, motion carried. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

• Approval to Bid Western Avenue Sewer Project: Stockwell Engineers have completed the plans for the Western 

Ave sewer project.  The plans have been reviewed by both City staff and DANR.  The project is estimated at 1.35M. 

Staff is recommending bidding this project sooner rather than later as it is anticipated that piping material prices may 

rise and the construction easements that the City secured are only good for 2 years. A motion was made by Monahan, 

second by O’Hare to advertise the Western Avenue Serwer Project for bid – all voted yes, motion carried.  

• Request to Release 2021 Budget Funds for Hartford Area Fire & Rescue, Hartford Senior Center and 

Humboldt Ambulance:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by O’Hara to table this agenda item until the next 

meeting – all voted yes, motion carried. 

• Approve Lease Agreement for Billboard #2 (west face): Dave Larson, with Dave & Co. Real Estate Team, has 

signed the City’s standard 3-year lease agreement to lease the west face of billboard #2 effective Jan 1, 2022.  This 

billboard is currently empty.  A motion was made by Monahan, second by Randall to approve the 3-year lease 

agreement with Dave & Co. Real Estate Team for the west face of billboard #2 – all voted yes, motion carried.          

• Review Insurance Quotes:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by O’Hara to table this item – all voted yes, 

motion carried.  

• Mayoral Appointments to Park & Recreation Board:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by Randall to 

table this item – all voted yes, motion carried.  
 



EXECUTIVE SESSION:  A motion was made Monahan, second by O’Hara to enter executive session pursuant to SDCL 1-

25-2(1) for personnel and SDCL 9-34-19 for economic development at 7:46pm – all voted yes, motion carried.  

 

Minutes recorded by Finance Officer Karen Wilber. 

  

I, the undersigned, Karen Wilber, Finance Officer in and for the City of Hartford, South Dakota, do hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes which is on file at the Municipal Finance Office. 

 

 

____________________________________                             

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by O’Hara to exit executive session at 8:16pm – all voted 

yes, motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  A motion was made by O’Hara, second by Monahan to adjourn at 8:17pm – all voted yes, motion 

carried. 
 

Minutes recorded by City Administrator Teresa Sidel. 

  

I, the undersigned, Teresa Sidel, City Administrator in and for the City of Hartford, South Dakota, do hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes which is on file at the Municipal Finance Office. 

 

 

____________________________________                             

Teresa Sidel, City Administrator 

 

 





ORDINANCE #720 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Hartford, South Dakota, 

providing for the rezoning of certain property within the City 

of Hartford. 

 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the governing body of the City of Hartford, South Dakota: 

 

THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION under the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Hartford, South Dakota, 

of the real property described as: 

 
Lot 10 South of Hwy 38 (Except Sunnyside Estates)of Smith & 

Grover’s Addition to the City of Hartford, Minnehaha County, 

South Dakota and the East 80’ of Lot 7 of Block 1 of Sunnyside 

Addition to the City of Hartford, Minnehaha County, South Dakota 

(as shown on Exhibit A) 

 

IS HEREBY CHANGED from the municipal zoning district of Residential (R) to Community 

Commercial (CC). 

 
 

ADOPTED this 7th day of December, 2021  
 

 

 

__________________________    

Mayor Jeremy Menning 

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer       

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning Public Hearing:  November 9, 2021 

City Council Public Hearing and 1st Reading:  November 16, 2021 

City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption:  December 7, 2021 

Publication: December 17, 2021      

Effective: January 6, 2022        

 

 

 

 

 

(seal) 





 

RESOLUTION # 2021-14 

Transfer of Contingency Funds 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Hartford prepares and approves a budget each September for the 

following calendar year; and 

WHEREAS, the budget for 2021 contains a contingency fund of $50,000.00 that can be 

transferred to any general fund account by resolution of the City Council. 

THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED, that the following amounts be transferred from Contingency 

account #101-4115-429 to: 

          

    Police Administration                      101-4211-422202   Daytime Sheriff Salary            18,000.00 

                                                                 101-4211-426          Sheriff Supplies                             400.00 

 

    Pool                101-4511-411          Salaries                                        6,000.00 

                                                                 101-4511-412          OASI (Payroll Taxes)                     500.00 

                                                                 101-4511-413          Retirement                                    100.00 

                101-4511-426        Supplies                                      2,000.00 

                                                                 101-4511-428          Utilities                                       6,600.00 

 

    Park                                                     101-4521-411           Salaries                                       6,000.00  

                                                                 101-4521-412           OASI (Payroll Taxes)                    500.00 

                                                                 101-4521-425           Repairs & Maintenance           2,000.00 

                                                                 101-4521-426           Supplies                                      2,000.00 

                                                                 101-4521-439           Capital Improvements             4,500.00     

 

    Debt Service-Vandemark Project  101-4757-441           Admin Fee                                     600.00 

                                                                                                                           

                                                                               Total             $49,200.00 

  

Dated this 7th day of December 2021 

        
 
                                 ______________________________ 
        Jeremy Menning 
                     Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________                                                 (Seal) 
Karen Wilber 
Finance Officer                  



 

2021 Contingency Transfer - Explanation: 

(Resolution 2021-14) 

 
The city has $50,000.00 budgeted in our 2021 contingency account in the General Fund.  This amount can 

be used to cover unanticipated expenses or shortfalls in the general fund.   

 

This money can only be used for general fund expenses so any budget shortfalls in other funds (i.e.-water, 

sewer, 3rd penny, etc) need to be addressed with a supplemental appropriation, along with any major 

expenses in the general fund or items that were added by the city council over this past year after the 

budget was sent to the county.   

    

 In order to ensure enough budget funds until the end of the 2021 calendar year, I would like the council to 

approve the transfer of $49,200 from the contingency account to the follow general fund accounts (this will 

leave a balance of $800.00 in the contingency account if something small arises before the end of the 

year)…. 

 

Police Administration 

  Daytime Sheriff Salary 

           *Increase to cover actual salary paid to Deputy Kardas (budget too low)  18,000.00 

  Supplies 

           *Order of new ticket books to include new fee amounts – not planned at budget          400.00 

 

Pool     

  Salaries                          

          *Increase budget to cover salaries paid out       6,000.00      

  OASI (Payroll Taxes)                                                                                                          

          *Increase of Payroll taxes due to increase payroll paid out                                              500.00 

  Retirement           

          *Increase in retirement amount paid out due to increase in payroll       100.00 

  Supplies               

          *Purchased new lockers for pool that were not in budget                                              2,000.00                          

  Utilities  

          *Increase in utility costs         6,600.00                                  

 

Park 

  Salaries     

          *Increase budget to cover salaries paid out        6,000.00 

   OASI (Payroll Taxes)                                                                                                               

          *Increase in payroll taxes due to increase in payroll paid out        500.00 

   Repairs & Maintenance                                                                                                          

          *Unanticipated replacement of playground equip in main park & increase costs         2,000.00 

   Supplies 

          *Paid for 2 pet stations (reimbursed by Bike/Rec) & increase expenses                       2,000.00 

   Capital Improvements 

          *Added Playground Equipment and Border to Turtle Creek Park (reimb. by grant)    4,500.00 

 

 

Debt Service 

   Vandemark Project 

          *Charge for Administrator fee not known at budget time        600.00 

 

   

 

 

                                                                                             Total Transfer Amount       $49,200.00 



 

ORDINANCE #721 - SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SOUTH DAKOTA, PROVIDING FOR A 2021 

SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SOUTH DAKOTA THAT 

THE FOLLOWING SUM IS SUPPLEMENTALLY APPROPRIATED TO MEET THE OBLIGATIONS OF THE 

MUNICIPALITY: 

 

 

Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of 

$78,500.00 is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is the unassigned fund 

balance in the amount of $78,500.00 from the general fund reserve account to the 

annual budget of General Fund.   

 

Fund 101 – General Fund 

 

  Expenditures            

    P&Z – Professional Services                               $78,500.00 

    

  Means of Finance   

    Reserves-General Fund (101)                                       $78,500.00 

    

 

 

 

Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $5,000.00 

is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is the transfer in of unassigned fund 

balance in the amount of $5,000.00 from the Mickelson Road capital project fund 

reserve account to the annual budget of the Mickelson Road Capital Project Fund.   

 

Fund 505 – Mickelson Road Capital Project 

 

  Expenditures  

    Capital Project-Professional Services                              $5,000.00 

 

  Means of Finance  

    Reserves–Mickelson Road Capital Project Fund (505)                 $5,000.00 

     

                                                                    

 

 

Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $7,000.00 

is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is the transfer in of unassigned fund 

balance in the amount of $7,000.00 from the Vandemark Ave capital project fund 

reserve account to the annual budget of the Vandemark Ave capital project Fund.   

 

Fund 506 – Vandemark Avenue Capital Project 

 

  Expenditures  

    Capital Project-Professional Services                              $7,000.00 

 

  Means of Finance  

    Reserves–Vandemark Ave Capital Project Fund (506)                  $7,000.00 

     

                                                                    



Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $70,000 

is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is the transfer in of unassigned fund 

balance in the amount of $70,000 from the 9th Street capital project fund 

reserve account to the annual budget of the 9th Street Capital Project fund.   

 

Fund 508 – 9th Street Project 

 

  Expenditures  

    9th Street-Streets                                     $52,000.00 

    9th Street-Water                  $9,000.00 

    9th Street-Sewer                                                   $9,000.00 

  Total Appropriations                  $70,000.00 

     

 

  

  Means of Finance    

    Reserves–9th Street Capital Project Fund (508)                    $70,000.00 

     

 

 

Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $4,000.00 

is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is the unassigned fund balance in the 

amount of $4,000.00 from the water fund reserve account to the annual budget of 

water fund.   

 

Fund 602 – Water Fund 

 

  Expenditures   

    Water Deposit Refunds - Paid to City                     $3,500.00 

    Water Deposits Refunds - Paid to Customers                           $500.00   

  Total Appropriations             $4,000.00 

     

  Means of Finance   

   Reserves–Water Fund (602)                                           $4,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 

Pursuant to SDCL 9-21-7, a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $83,000 

is hereby authorized.  Means of finance is the unassigned fund balance in the 

amount of $83,000 from the sewer fund reserve account to the annual budget of 

sewer fund.   

 

Fund 604 – Sewer Fund 

 

  Expenditures            

    Sewer – Professional Services                           $83,000.00 

    

            

  Means of Finance   

   Reserves-Sewer Fund (604)                                          $83,000.00 

    

 

 

 



The Finance Officer is hereby directed to transfer the said amount and to show 

such action on the proper records of the City. 

 

Adopted this 21st Day of December 2021. 

 

 

_________________________ 

Jeremy Menning, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    (seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:__________________________ 

Karen Wilber 

Finance Officer 

 

 

 

First Reading: December 7, 2021 

Second Reading & Adoption: December 21, 2021 

Publication: December 31, 2021 

Effective Date: January 20, 2022 

 



 

2021 Supplemental Appropriation - Explanation: 

(Ordinance #721) 
 

 A supplemental appropriation ordinance is in this packet (Ordinance #721).  A supplemental appropriation 

allows the City to use money from the city’s reserve accounts (our saving accounts) for unplanned 

expenses, expenses that were not known when we completed the 2021 budget back in September of 2020, 

or items that were added by the city council throughout the year.  It also allows the city to add to the budget 

any additional expenses that are close to going over budget for all funds – contingency money in the budget 

can only be used for the General Fund so if additional money is needed in other funds, a supplemental 

appropriation must be passed.  Please let me know if you have any questions or need further explanation. 

 

 

THE FOLLOWING AMOUNTS WILL BE TRANSFERRED FROM THE CITY’S RESERVE 

ACCOUNTS TO THE APPROPRIATE EXPENSE ACCOUNT TO COVER UNFORESEEN 

EXPENSES, EXPENSES THAT ARE GOING OVER THEIR ORIGINAL BUDGET AMOUNT, 

OR EXPENSES THAT HAVE BEEN ADDED BY THE COUNCIL THROUGHOUT THE YEAR.   

 

 

GENERAL FUND (101) - $78,500 

The following expense in the general fund were paid from the general fund reserve (savings) account.     

 

• Planning & Zoning – Engineering Fees - $78,500:   The city’s general account for engineering 

fees is overbudget.  This is mostly due to City Council approval on May 4, 2021, for ISG to 

conduct a Community Plan ($62,500).  The balance is engineer cost associated with the switch of 

engineering firms and building a new GIS system.    

 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND – MICKELSON ROAD (505)- $5,000 

The following expenses in the capital projects fund 505-Mickelson Road fund were paid from the 

Mickelson Road fund reserve (savings) account.  

 

• Mickelson Road – Professional Services - $5,000.00:  This is to cover engineering fees for the 

FEMA LOMR that was filed in connection with this project. The city was anticipating this project 

to be completed by the end of  2020, so nothing was budgeted in 2021, but due to the long FEMA 

process, expenses were incurred in 2021.  

 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND – VANDEMARK AVE (506)- $7,000 

The following expenses in the capital projects fund 506-Vandemark Ave fund were paid from the 

Vandemark Ave fund reserve (savings) account.  

 

• Vandemark Ave – Professional Services - $7,000.00:  This is to cover engineering fees for the 

Vandemark Ave Project incurred in 2021.  Once again, the city was anticipating this project to be 

completed by the end of  2020, so nothing was budgeted in 2021, but expenses did incur due to 

additional inspections and seeding issues.   

 

 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND – 9th Street Project (508) - $70,000 

The following expenses in the capital projects fund 508-9th Street fund were paid from the 9th Street fund 

reserve (savings) account.  

 

• 9th Street – Streets - $52,000:  Again, the city was anticipating this project to be completed by the 

end of  2020, so nothing was budgeted in 2021, but expenses did incur due to unresolved 

pavement issues and follow-up inspections. There were two invoices paid in 2021 that were coded 

against streets, water & sewer. 

• 9th Street – Water - $9,000:  Again, the city was anticipating this project to be completed by the 

end of  2020, so nothing was budgeted in 2021, but expenses did incur due to unresolved 

pavement issues and follow-up inspections. There were two invoices paid in 2021 that were coded 

against streets, water & sewer. 



• 9th Street – Sewer - $9,000.00:  Again, the city was anticipating this project to be completed by 

the end of  2020, so nothing was budgeted in 2021, but expenses did incur due to unresolved 

pavement issues and follow-up inspections. There were two invoices paid in 2021 that were coded 

against streets, water & sewer. 

 

 

 

WATER FUND (602)- $4,000.00 

The following expenses in the water fund were paid and will be paid from the water fund reserve (savings) 

account.  

 

• Deposits paid to the city - $3,500.00:  This is money paid out from customers deposit funds for 

water bills due to the city.  This amount is estimated at budget time, but actual expenses paid out 

of this account depends on the number of accounts that are closed with the city that have unpaid 

balances.   

• Deposits paid to customers - $500.00:  This is money paid out from customers deposit funds that 

is refunded by to customers.  This amount is estimated at budget time, but actual expenses paid out 

of this account depends on the number of accounts that are closed with the city that have deposit 

funds that need to be refunded.     

 

 

 

SEWER FUND (604)- $83,000 

The following expenses in the sewer fund were paid from the sewer fund reserve (savings) account.  

 

• Professional Services - $83,000:  This amount will cover expenses added to the sewer fund for 

engineer fees.  This is for the Feasibility Study done by ISG that was added to budget by the city 

council on 3/10/21 ($50,000) and for the Facility Plan done by ISG that was added to the budget 

by the city council on 8/17/21 ($32,974).   



Ordinance 722 
 

TITLE 2 - BOUNDARIES, WARDS AND VOTING PRECINCTS  
 

[INCORPORATION OF MUNICIPALITIES SDCL 9-3] 

 [ELECTIONS SDCL 12-1] 

 [PRECINCTS AND POLLING PLACES SDCL 12-14]  
 

Chapter 2.01 - Boundaries 

Chapter 2.02 - Wards and Voting Precincts 
 

CHAPTER 2.01 - BOUNDARIES  

2.0101  Boundaries. The corporate limits of the City shall be declared to be such as have been legally established and 

amended by law and ordinances of the City as shown on the official map on file in the office of the Finance 

Officer. Such map shall be incorporated in this ordinance by reference and adopted as the official map showing 

the boundaries and limits of the City. (SDCL 9-3-2)  
 

CHAPTER 2.02 - WARDS AND VOTING PRECINCTS  
 

2.0102  Wards and Voting Precincts. The City shall be divided into three wards, which shall be combined and 

consolidated into one election precinct, and shall be designated respectively as Wards One, Two and Three. The 

wards shall be described by stating the certain street or avenue designations or other landmarks that divide and 

border the wards. Any reference to street or avenue below shall mean an imaginary line running down the 

approximate middle of each street or avenue. The wards of the City of Hartford are as set forth below and the 

city ward map dated December 21, 2021 thereof on file in the office of the Finance Officer. Any discrepancies 

shall be resolved by reference to the map rather than the physical descriptions set forth herein.  
 

The First Ward shall include all of that part of the City east of 463 Avenue located between 7th Street and 258 

Street. It shall also include all of that part of the City east of Oaks Avenue located between 6th Street and 258 St. 

It shall also include all of that part of the City east of Van Demark Avenue located between Railroad Street and 

258 Street. It shall also include all of the part of the City east of Feyder Avenue and west of Van Demark Avenue 

located between 2nd Street and 4th Street. 
 

The Second Ward shall include all of that part of the City west of Western Avenue located north of Interstate 90. 

It shall also include all of that part of the City east of Western Avenue located between 7th Street and Mickelson 

Road. It shall also include all of that part of the City east of Oaks Avenue located between 6th Street and South 

Street. It shall also include all of that part of the City east of Main Avenue 2nd Street and 6th Street.  It shall also 

include all of the part of the City east of Feyder Avenue and west of Van Demark Avenue located between 6th 

Street and 4th Street.  
 

The Third Ward shall include all of that part of the City east of Western Avenue located between Mickelson Road 

and Interstate 90. It shall also include all of that part of the City east of Main Avenue and West of Van Demark 

Avenue located between 2nd Street and Mickelson Road. It shall also include all of that part of the City South of 

Railroad Street and South of South Dakota Highway 38.  
 

(Amended Ordinance No. 567, 8-2-2011) 

 

 

Adopted this 21st day of December 2021.    



 

 

_________________________________ 

Mayor Jeremy Menning 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer 

 

 

 

(seal) 

 

 

 

First Reading:  December 7, 2021 

Second Reading and Adoption:  December 21, 2021 

Publication:   December 31, 2021 

Effective:  January 20, 2021 

 

 



11

81 133

96

133

70

104

63

38

112

59
31

44

0

23
13

65

93

0

87

42

72

7
0

188

26

29

43

18

50

13 54 17
46

9

6

6

7

95

157

28

33

74

46
27 14

153

31
22

72

2931

24
19 17
25 28 38

57

0
0

0
109

41

56

94

58

0

0

0

0

46
3 A

VE

5TH ST

46
6 A

VE

RU
UD

 LN

46
5 A

VE46
4 A

VE

UNKNOWN 9TH ST

6TH ST
WE

ST
ER

N A
VE

OA
KS

AV
E

TE
SS

A
AV

E
MA

IN
AV

E

4TH
ST PINEVIEW

CIR

CO
NN

IE
CI

R

VA
N 

DE
MA

RK
 AV

E

CA
RT

ER
ST

SA
GE

HO
RN

 D
R

JEFFERY ST

KELSEY ST

3RD ST

FAIRWAY
LN

BOGGS
DR

MU
ND

T
AV

E

KIN
GS

BU
RY

AV
E

2ND ST

SHAMROCK DR

7TH ST
JEANNE

CIR

258 ST

EA
ST

ER
N

AV
E

6TH ST

1ST ST

SOUTH ST

3RD
ST

5TH ST

KA
TH

LE
EN

DR

MICKELSON RD

EL
M 

DR

KALVIN DR

BR
OW

ER
 C

IR

UNKNOWN

KLOXIN DR

JENNIFER DR

JEANNINEDR

CHURCH ST

CR
ES

SM
AN

 TR
L PA

TR
IC

K
AV

E

CRYSTAL DR

DIAMOND
CIR

FE
YD

ER
AV

E

8TH
ST

SD HWY 38

CRESTWOOD
DR

46
4 A

VE

6TH ST

5TH ST

RAILROADST
CL

OV
ER

LE
AF

AV
E

MARYLN

I 9
0 E

1

KIADR

OPAL LN

CO
LT

ON
 R

D

KE
LL

EY
AV

E

IR
ON

WO
OD

DR

TR
OJ

AN
 AV

E

RUUD TRL I 90 W2

260 ST

I 90 E2I 90 E1

I 90 W1

I 90 E2
I 90 W2

SCOTTS AVE

I 90 E

46
3 A

VE

46
4 A

VE

46
6 A

VE
46

6 A
VE

46
2 A

VE

46
5 A

VE

I 90 W1

259 ST

46
5 A

VE

BENTON RD

RAILROAD ST

PAR TEE DR

I 90 W

261 ST

WE
ST

MA
RK

 AV
E

SK
UN

K C
RE

EK
 AV

E

Hartford, SD
City Wards
Hartford_Alt#4
DIST_NAME

D1

D2

D3

Alternative #4

Deviation:

Total Deviation: 8.41%

Ward 3: --5.36%
Ward 1: 3.04%

Total Population:
3,354

Optimal District 
Population:

1,118

Ward 3: 1,058

Ward 1: 1,144
Ward 2: 1,152

































 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  #714 
 
AN ORDINANCE ENTITLED, AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS, ARTICLE 6 
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, ARTICLE 7 COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, ARTICLE 8 
REGIONAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, ARTICLE 9 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, ARTICLE 10 LIGHT 
INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, ARTICLE 11 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, ARTICLE 12 ADDITIONAL USE 
REGULATIONS, AND ARTICLE 20 DEFINITIONS OF THE HARTFORD CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE 9 
PLANNING AND ZONING CHAPTER 9.03 ZONING REGULATIONS, AND THE REPEAL OF ALL RESOLUTIONS 
AND ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota: that Article 1 General Provisions 
adopted by the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations of the City of Hartford be amended by adding 
the following: 
 
1.04.01  Prohibited Uses   
 
All uses and structures not specifically listed as a permitted use or as a conditional use in a particular 
zoning district shall be prohibited in said district. 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota:  that Article 6 
Neighborhood Commercial District adopted by the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations as amended 
of the City of Hartford be amended by adding the following: 
 
6.01 Permitted Uses 
 

Cannabis Dispensaries 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 12.16 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota:  that Article 7 
Community Commercial District adopted by the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations as amended of 
the City of Hartford be amended by adding the following: 
 
7.01 Permitted Uses 
 

Cannabis Dispensaries 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 12.16 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota:  that Article 8 Regional 
Commercial District adopted by the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations as amended of the City of 
Hartford be amended by adding the following: 
 
8.01 Permitted Uses 
 

Cannabis Dispensaries 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 12.16 

 



 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota:  that Article 9 Central 
Business District adopted by the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations as amended of the City of 
Hartford be amended by adding the following: 
 
9.01 Permitted Uses 
 

Cannabis Dispensaries 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 12.16 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota:  that Article 10 Light 
Industrial District adopted by the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations as amended of the City of 
Hartford be amended by adding the following: 
 
10.01 Permitted Uses 
 

Cannabis Cultivation Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 12.16 

Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 12.16 

Cannabis Testing Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 12.16 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota:  that Article 11 Heavy 
Industrial District adopted by the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations as amended of the City of 
Hartford be amended by adding the following: 
 
11.01 Permitted Uses 
 

Cannabis Cultivation Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 12.16 

Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 12.16 

Cannabis Testing Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.11, 12.16 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota:  that Article 12 
Additional Use Regulations adopted by the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations as amended of the 
City of Hartford be amended by adding the following: 
 
12.16 CANNABIS DISPENSARIES. 

 
A. Required Separation Distances 

 
1. A cannabis dispensary shall be located not less than One-thousand Feet (1,000') from a public 

or private school K-12 existing before the date of the cannabis dispensary application. 
 

2. Prescribed separation/setback distances from a public or private school existing before the date 
of the cannabis dispensary application are to be measured from the lot line of the property 
where the dispensary is proposed. 
 

3. It shall be unlawful for a medical marijuana establishment to share office space with a 
practitioner as defined in SDCL 34-20G-1(20). 

    
 



 

 

B. Other Locational Requirements 
 

1. Permanent or temporary dispensaries are prohibited in all other zoning districts and not eligible 

for a home occupation use.  

2. It shall be unlawful to operate a dispensary in a building which contains a residence or a mixed-

use building with commercial and residential uses.   

3. Drive-thru services shall only be permitted for the dispensing of medical cannabis  and all other 

sales must be completed at the dispensary location.     

 
C. Controlled Access - No cannabis establishment shall share premises with or permit access directly 

from another medical cannabis establishment, business that sells alcohol or tobacco, or, if allowed 
by law, other cannabis establishment. 

  
D. Hours of operation: 

 
1. Cannabis dispensaries are allowed to be open between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m. 

each day of the week. 
 
E. Documentation of State Licensure.  

 
1. No cannabis dispensary shall acquire, possess, store, deliver transfer, transport, supply, or 

dispense cannabis, cannabis products, paraphernalia without providing documentation of 
licensure from the State of South Dakota. 
 

F. The zoning official is authorized to issue permits (building/use) for cannabis dispensaries subject to 
following: 
 
1. Submission of a site plan containing the following:  

  
i. Any information required for applicable building permit,  

 
ii. Ingress and egress plan 

 
iii. Parking plan 

 
iv. Lighting plan (including security lighting) 

 
v. Screening/security fencing plan,  

 
vi. Refuse plan; 

 
vii. Hours of Operation; 

 



 

 

viii. Any other information as lawfully may be required by the Zoning official to determine 
compliance with this ordinance 

 
2. Documentation of ability to meet setback/separation requirements. 

 
3. Documentation of State Licensure. 

 
G. All Cannabis Establishments are required to be constructed in conformance with the most recent 

edition of the International Building Code and International Fire Code adopted by City Council of 

the City of Hartford.  

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Hartford, South Dakota:  that Article 20 
DEFINITIONS, section 20.02, “Definitions” adopted by the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations as 
amended of the City of Hartford be amended by adding the following: 
 
CANNABIS (OR MARIJUANA): all parts of any plant of the genus cannabis, whether growing or not, in 
its natural and unaltered state, except for drying or curing and crushing or crumbling. The term includes 
an altered state of marijuana absorbed into the human body. The term does not include fiber produced 
from the mature stalks of such plant, or oil or cake made from the seeds of such plant. The term does 
not include the plant Cannabis sativa L. (hemp) and any part of that plant, including the seeds thereof 
and all derivatives, extracts, cannabinoids, isomers, acids, salts, and salts of isomers, whether growing 
or not, with a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of not more than three-tenths of one percent 
on a dry weight basis. 
 
CANNABIS CULTIVATION FACILITY: in addition to the definition in SDCL 34-20G-1, this term is further 
defined as a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, cultivates, delivers, transfers, transports, 
supplies, or sells cannabis and related supplies to a cannabis establishment. 
 
CANNABIS DISPENSARY: in addition to the definition in SDCL 34-20G-1, this term is further defined as a 
legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, stores, delivers, transfers, transports, sells, supplies, or 
dispenses cannabis, cannabis products, paraphernalia, or related supplies and educational materials. 
 
CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENT: a cannabis cultivation facility, a cannabis testing facility, a cannabis 
product manufacturing facility, or a cannabis dispensary. 
 
CANNABIS PRODUCT MANUFACTURING FACILITY: in addition to the definition in SDCL 34-20G-1, this 
term is further defined as a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, manufactures, delivers, 
transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis products to a cannabis dispensary. 
 
CANNABIS PRODUCTS: any concentrated cannabis, cannabis extracts, and products that are infused 
with cannabis or an extract thereof and are intended for use or consumption by humans. The term 
includes edible cannabis products, beverages, topical products, ointments, oils, and tinctures. 
 
CANNABIS TESTING FACILITY: in addition to the definition in SDCL 34-20G-1, this term is further defined 
as a legally licensed entity legally authorized to analyze the safety and potency of cannabis. 
 
Passed and adopted this 7th day of September, 2021. 



 

 

 
         By:____________________________ 
ATTEST:              Jeremy Menning, Mayor 
 
______________________________ 
Finance Officer       
 
First Reading:  8/31/21 
Second Reading  9/7/21 
Date Adopted:  9/7/21 
Date Published:  9/10/21 
Effective Date:  9/30/21 
 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE #715 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF HARTFORD REVISED MUNICIPAL ORDINANCES TITLE 4 LICENSES 
CHAPTER 4.02 (RESERVED) BY ADDING CHAPTER 4.02 WHICH ENACTS LICENSING PROVISIONS FOR 
CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS, AND FOR THE REPEAL OF ALL RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Hartford that Chapter 4.02 of the Ordinances of the City 
of Hartford is hereby amended by adding a new Chapter 4.02 as follows: 
 
CHAPTER 4.02:  LICENSING PROVISIONS FOR CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS 
 
Section 
 4.0201   Purpose and Intent 
 4.0202   Definitions 
 4.0203   License Required 
 4.0204   License Application 
 4.0205   Issuance of License 
 4.0206   City Neutrality as to Applicants 
 4.0207   Number of Cannabis Dispensaries 
 4.0208   Expiration of License and Renewal 
 4.0209   Suspension 
 4.0210   Revocation 
 4.0211   Suspension and Revocation Process 
 4.0212   Appeal 
 4.0213   Licenses not Transferrable 
 4.0214   Hours of Operation for Dispensaries 
 4.0215   Liability for Violations 
 4.0216   Penalties 
 
§ 4.0201: PURPOSE AND INTENT 
 
The City Council of the City of Hartford enacts the following licensing ordinances in order to ensure that 
cannabis establishments within the municipal boundaries of the City operate in a manner which complies 
with state laws and regulations, protects the health, safety, and welfare of the general public, prevents 
potential conflicts and issues arising from ownership and employees, recognizes certain safety and 
security considerations, and minimizes risk of unauthorized use or access of cannabis by the general 
public.  

 
§ 4.0202: DEFINITIONS 
 
Unless an alternative definition is explicitly stated in this section, this chapter utilizes the definitions for 
cannabis-related terms which are defined by SDCL 34-20G-1. 
 
Cannabis (or Marijuana): all parts of any plant of the genus cannabis, whether growing or not, in its 
natural and unaltered state, except for drying or curing and crushing or crumbling. The term includes an 
altered state of marijuana absorbed into the human body. The term does not include fiber produced from 



 

 

the mature stalks of such plant, or oil or cake made from the seeds of such plant. The term does not 
include the plant Cannabis sativa L. and any part of that plant, including the seeds thereof and all 
derivatives, extracts, cannabinoids, isomers, acids, salts, and salts of isomers, whether growing or not, 
with a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of not more than three-tenths of one percent on a dry 
weight basis. 
 
Cannabis Cultivation Facility: in addition to the definition in SDCL 34-20G-1, this term is further defined 
as a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, cultivates, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or 
sells cannabis and related supplies to a cannabis establishment. 
 
Cannabis Dispensary: in addition to the definition in SDCL 34-20G-1, this term is further defined as a 
legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, stores, delivers, transfers, transports, sells, supplies, or 
dispenses cannabis, cannabis products, paraphernalia, or related supplies and educational materials. 
 
Cannabis Establishment: cannabis cultivation facility, a cannabis testing facility, a cannabis product 
manufacturing facility, or a cannabis dispensary. 
 
Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility: in addition to the definition in SDCL 34-20G-1, this term is 
further defined as a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, manufactures, delivers, transfers, 
transports, supplies, or sells cannabis products to a cannabis dispensary. 
 
Cannabis Products: any concentrated cannabis, cannabis extracts, and products that are infused with 
cannabis or an extract thereof, and are intended for use or consumption by humans. The term includes 
edible cannabis products, beverages, topical products, ointments, oils, and tinctures 
 
Cannabis Testing Facility: in addition to the definition in SDCL 34-20G-1, this term is further defined as a 
legally licensed entity legally authorized to analyze the safety and potency of cannabis. 
 
Department: the South Dakota Department of Health 
 
§ 4.0203: LICENSE REQUIRED 
 
(A) No cannabis establishment may be located or operate in the city without the appropriate valid and 

current cannabis establishment license issued by the city pursuant to this article. A violation of this 
provision is subject to the general penalty provision in § 4.0216.  Each day of the violation constitutes 
a separate offense. 

 
(B) No cannabis establishment may be located or operate in the city without the appropriate valid and 

current cannabis establishment registration certificate issued by the Department pursuant to rules 
promulgated under SDCL 34-20G. A violation of this provision is subject to the general penalty 
provision in § 4.0216. Each day of the violation constitutes a separate offense. 

 
§ 4.0204: LICENSE APPLICATION 

 
(A) An application for a cannabis establishment license must be made on a form provided by the city. 

No other application form will be considered. 
 

(B) The applicant must submit the following: 



 

 

 
(1) Application fee of $10,000.00. The City will reimburse $5,000.00 for applicants who fail to obtain 

a registration certificate from the South Dakota Department of Health. 
 

(2) An application that will include, but is not limited to, the following: 
 

(a)  The legal name of the prospective cannabis establishment; 
 

(b)  The physical address of the prospective cannabis establishment that meets the zoning 
requirements in Chapter 9.03 Zoning Regulations as well as any location requirements 
pursuant SDCL 34-20G and the administrative rules promulgated thereunder.  
 

(c)  The name, address, and birth date of each principal officer, owner, and board member of the 
proposed cannabis establishment. 

 
(d)  A sworn statement that no principal officer, owner, or board member has been convicted of a 

violent felony offense in the previous ten (10) years in any jurisdiction.  
 

(e)  Any additional information requested by the city. 
 

§ 4.0205: ISSUANCE OF LICENSE 
 

(A) The city will issue a license unless: 
 

(1) The applicant has made a false statement on the application or submits false records or 
documentation; or 

 
(2) Any owner, principal officer, or board member of the applicant is under the age of twenty-one 

(21) years; or 
 
(3) Any owner, principal officer, or board member of the applicant has been convicted of a violent 

felony offense in the previous ten (10) years in any jurisdiction; or 
 
(4) The proposed location does not meet the applicable zoning requirements under Chapter 9.03 

Zoning Regulations; or 
 
(5) The proposed location does not meet all location requirements under SDCL 34-20G and the 

administrative rules promulgated thereunder; or 
 
(6) The license is to be used for a business prohibited by state or local law, statute, rule, ordinance, 

or regulation; or 
 
(7) Any owner, principal officer, or board member of the applicant has had a cannabis establishment 

license revoked by the city or a registration certificate revoked by the state; or 
 
(8) Any applicant, or an owner, principal officer, or board member thereof, is overdue in payment to 

the city of taxes, fees, fines, or penalties assessed against or imposed upon the applicant in 
relation to any cannabis establishment; or 



 

 

 
(9) The applicant will not be operating the business for which the license would be issued; or 

 
(10)  No principal officers of the applicant are residents of the State of South Dakota.  

 
(B) In the case of an application for a cannabis dispensary license, the city will reject the application if the 

limit on the number of cannabis dispensaries has been reached.  
  

(C) The license must be posted in a conspicuous place at or near the entrance to the cannabis 
establishment so that it may be easily read at any time. 

 
§ 4.0206: CITY NEUTRALITY AS TO APPLICANTS 

 
(A) Upon request from the Department as to the City’s preference of applicants, the City will neither 

support nor oppose any registration certificate application under consideration by the Department. 
Likewise, if inquiry is made by the Department, the City will abstain from endorsing any application as 
beneficial to the community.  
 

§ 4.0207: NUMBER OF CANNABIS DISPENSARIES 
 

(A) No more than three (3) cannabis dispensary/dispensaries shall be allowed to operate in the City at 
any time.  
 

§ 4.0208: EXPIRATION OF LICENSE AND RENEWAL 
 

(A) Each license expires one year from the date of issuance and may be renewed only by making 
application as provided in Section 4.0204. Application for renewal must be submitted at least thirty 
(30) days before the expiration date. The license holder must continue to meet the license 
requirements to be eligible for a renewal. 
 

(B) The renewal fee is $10,000.00. The City will reimburse $5,000.00 for applicants who fail to obtain a 
renewal of their registration certificate from the Department. 
 

(C) Failure to renew a license in accordance with this section may result in additional fees. Upon 
expiration of the license, the city may order closure of the cannabis establishment. 
 

(D) If a license holder has not operated an establishment for which it holds a license in the preceding 
twelve (12) months, the license will not be renewed. 
 

§ 4.0209: SUSPENSION 
 

(A) A license may be suspended if the license holder or an employee or agent of the license holder: 
 
(1) Violates or is otherwise not in compliance with any section of this article. 

 
(2) Consumes or smokes or allows any person to consume or smoke cannabis on the premises of the 
cannabis establishment. 



 

 

 
(3) Knowingly dispenses or provides cannabis or cannabis products to an individual or business to 
whom it is unlawful to provide cannabis or cannabis products. 
 

(B) A license may be suspended if the license holder has its Department-issued registration certificate 
suspended, revoked, or not renewed by the Department or if the registration certificate is expired. 
 

(C) A license may be suspended if the license holder creates or allows to be created a public nuisance at 
the cannabis establishment.  
 

§ 4.0210: REVOCATION 
 

(A) A license may be revoked if the license is suspended under Section 4.0209 and the cause for the 
suspension is not remedied. 
 

(B) A license may be revoked if the license is subject to suspension under Section 4.0209 because of a 
violation outlined in that section and the license has been previously suspended in the preceding 24 
months. 
 

(C) A license is subject to revocation if a license holder or an employee of a license holder: 
 

(1) Gave false or misleading information in the material submitted during the application process; 
 

(2) Knowingly allowed possession, use, or sale of non-cannabis controlled substances on the premises; 
 

(3) Operated the cannabis establishment or the business of the cannabis establishment for which a 
license is required under this article while the license was suspended; 
 

(4) Repeatedly violates the provisions of Section 4.0209; 
 

(5) Operated a function of a cannabis establishment for which the license holder was not licensed 
(e.g., a licensed cannabis cultivation facility conducting cannabis testing functions without a 
cannabis testing establishment license); 
 

(6) A license holder, or an owner, principal officer, or board member thereof, is delinquent in payment 
to the city, county, or state for any taxes or fees related to the cannabis establishment; 
 

(7) A license holder, or an owner, principal officer, or board member thereof, has been convicted of, 
or continues to employ an employee who has been convicted of, a disqualifying felony offense as 
defined by SDCL 34-20G;  
 

(8) The license holder has its Department-issued registration certificate suspended, revoked, or not 
renewed or the registration certificate is expired; 
 

(9) The license holder allows a public nuisance to continue after notice from the City. 
 

§ 4.0211. SUSPENSION AND REVOCATION PROCESS 
 



 

 

(A) The license holder will receive a notice of intent to suspend or notice of intent to revoke informing 
the license holder of the violation and the city’s intention to suspend or revoke the license. The notice 
will be hand delivered to the license holder or an employee or agent of the license holder or sent by 
certified mail, return receipt requested to the physical address of the cannabis establishment.  
 

(B) If the license holder disputes the suspension or revocation, the license holder has ten (10) days from 
the postmark date on the notice or the date the notice was hand delivered to request a hearing before 
a hearing panel, which will consist of the Mayor, City Administrator, and Chair of the Planning 
Commission. 
 

(C) A suspension will be for thirty (30) days and begins ten (10) days after the postmark date on the notice 
or the date the notice is hand delivered unless the license holder exercises its rights to process and 
appeal, in which case the suspension takes effect upon the final determination of suspension. 
 

(D) A revocation will be for one (1) year and begins ten (10) days after the postmark date on the notice 
or the date the notice is hand delivered unless the license holder appeals the revocation, in which 
case the revocation takes effect upon the final determination of revocation. 
 

(E) The license holder who has had the license revoked may not be issued any cannabis 
establishment license for one year from the date the revocation became effective. 

 
§ 4.0212: APPEAL 
 
An applicant or license holder who has been denied a license or renewal of a license or who has had a 
license suspended or revoked under this article may appeal to the City Council by submitting a written 
appeal within ten (10) days of the postmark on the notice of denial, nonrenewal, suspension, or 
revocation. The written appeal must be submitted to City Hall 125 N. Main, Hartford, South Dakota, 
57033. The appeal will be considered by the City Council at a regularly scheduled meeting within one 
month of the receipt of the appeal. 
 
§ 4.0213: LICENSES NOT TRANSFERRABLE 
 
No cannabis establishment license holder may transfer the license to any other person or entity either 
with or without consideration, nor may a license holder operate a cannabis establishment at any place 
other than the address designated in the application. 
 
§ 4.0214: HOURS OF OPERATION FOR DISPENSARIES 
 
No cannabis dispensary may operate between the hours of 12:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. any day of the week. 
 
§ 4.0215: LIABILITY FOR VIOLATIONS 
 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, for the purposes of this article, an act by an employee or agent 
of a cannabis establishment that constitutes grounds for suspension or revocation will be imputed to 
the cannabis establishment license holder for purposes of finding a violation of this article, or for purposes 
of license denial, suspension, or revocation, only if an officer, director or general partner or a person who 
managed, supervised or controlled the operation of the cannabis establishment, knowingly allowed such 
act to occur on the premises. 



 

 

 
§ 4.0216: PENALTIES 
 
Any person who operates or causes to be operated a cannabis establishment without a valid license or in 
violation of this article is subject to a suit for injunction as well as prosecution for ordinance 
violations. Such violations are punishable by a maximum fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00). Each day 
a cannabis establishment so operates is a separate offense or violation. 

 
Severability. The provisions of this ordinance are severable. If any provision of this ordinance or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application. 
 
Passed and adopted this 7th day of September, 2021. 
 
 
      By:________________________________________ 
             Jeremy Menning, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Finance Officer 
 
 
First Reading:  8/31/21 
Second Reading  9/7/21 
Date Adopted:  9/7/21 
Date Published:  9/10/21 
Effective Date:  9/30/21 
 
 



MCSO HARTFORD FIELD OFFICE 30 DAY REVIEW, NOVEMBER 2021 

 

Total calls for service including Deputy initiated:  218 (decrease of 17).  7.26 calls for service per day (30 day)  

 

Security checks: 3  (decrease of 25) 

Traffic stops: 42 (decrease of 19) 

• Cites: 7 (decrease 4) 

• Written Warnings: 15 (decrease of 12) 

• Verbal Warning: 14 (decrease of 2) 

Follow-up: 13 (increase of 3)  

Civil paper service: 25 (increase of 13)  

Public assist: 5 (decrease of 2) 

DWI: 1 (increase of 1) 

Parking problems: 3 (decrease of 3) 

o CITES: 0 (same) 

o Written Warning: 0 (decrease of 1) 

o VW: 3 (same) 

Family dispute: 1 (decrease of 2) 

SO Landlines: 11 (increase of 2) 

Abandoned vehicles: 1 (increase of 1) 

Suspicious vehicle: 8 (increase of 1) 

Suspicious activity: 0 (decrease of 2) 

Disorderly subjects: 10 (increase of 2) 

Traffic accidents: 6 (increase of 1) 

Warrant Service: 4 5 (decrease of 1) 

Larceny: 7 (increase of 5) 

Vandalism: 5 (increase of 5) 

Check Well Being: 3 (decrease of 1) 

Case reports: 21 (increase of 12) 

Arrest: 6 (increase of 3) 

 

 

Community Policing Events: 

• December 21st @ Stomping Grounds 7:00a-8:30a (Donuts and Deputies)  



Chamber and Economic  
Developer’s Report  
12/07/2021  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hartford Area Chamber of Commerce 

- Working with the individual committees for upcoming:  
o Continued updates for events and meetings needing to be scheduled and 

posted to website and social media accounts. 
▪ Scheduling breakfast/luncheons/Mixers 
▪ Ribbon cuttings 

o Annual Banquet – Venue has been secured as well as entertainment  
▪ March 4, 2022 

 
- E-Newsletters being sent out each Thursday and Newsletter twice a year. 

o Working on Spring Newsletter. 
o Working on several direct mailers. 

- Continue efforts on website and social media updates. 
o The Chamber will be getting an updated website in the new year. 

 
- Events continue to be scheduled and Events committee will be looking for 

members to host Mixers beginning in January 2022. 
 
Upcoming Meetings/Events: 
Christmas Cookie Crawl, December 10th 
Executive Board Meeting, Friday, January 7th at 7 a.m., Location TBD 
Board Meeting, Monday, January 17th at 6:30 p.m., City Hall 
Membership Mixer, January 2022 
Executive Board Meeting, Friday, February 4th at 7 a.m., Location TBD 
Board Meeting, Monday, February 21st at 6:30 p.m., City Hall 
Membership Mixer, February 2022 
Chamber Annual Banquet, March 4, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chamber and Economic  
Developer’s Report  
12/07/2021  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Hartford Area Development Foundation 

- Continued efforts meeting with prospective landowners and purchase 
opportunities. 

- Continued meetings with developers and investors 
- Continued efforts on RFI’s from GOED and businesses that have interests in 

Hartford 
- Envision 2025 invoicing and retention efforts. 

▪ Had a meeting with Al Doeve on Friday, November 19th with 
members of the Advisory team. 

o Setting up meetings with prospective Investors. 
- Invites to area developers and other economic related speakers to speak at 

upcoming HADF monthly meetings. 
 

o Scheduling Tours for HADF Board of Directors 
- Reaching 0ut to area businesses regarding groundbreaking opportunities 

 
- Continued work with ISG and members of the city-wide Task Force  

 
 
***HACC and HADF Marketing Drip Campaign to showcase Hartford continues. 
 
 
Meetings continue to be scheduled. Continued efforts for learning Economic 
Development to better perform and execute job duties. 
 
Upcoming Meetings: 
HADF Board Meetings 
Wednesday, December 8, 7:30 a.m., Stomping Grounds 
Wednesday, December 15, 7:30 a.m., Stomping Grounds 
Wednesday, December 22, 7:30 a.m., Stomping Grounds 
 
Dakota Resource Network 
March 3rd in Kimball, SD – Dakota Resource Network (all day)  
 
Sioux Metro Growth Alliance Meetings 
January 19th, TBD, at Noon 
February 16th, TBD, at Noon 
March 16th, TBD, at Noon 
April 13-14th, SMGA Grow Smarter Conference 
April 20th, TBD, at Noon 



Chamber and Economic  
Developer’s Report  
12/07/2021  
 
 
 
 
 
May 10, Minnehaha County Bus Tour 
May 18th, TBD, at Noon 
June 15th, TBD, at Noon 
July – No Meeting 
August 17th, TBD, at Noon 
September 21st, TBD, at Noon 
October 19th, TBD, at Noon 
November 16th, TBD, at Noon 
December – No Meeting 
 
 



Engineer’s Report  
 

101 South Reid Street + Suite 202 + Sioux Falls, SD 57103 

605.274.6401 + ISGInc.com 

Architecture + Engineering + Environmental + Planning 

To:  City of Hartford 

From:  ISG – David Doxtad 

Date:  December 7, 2021 

cc:  Teresa Sidel 

 

ONGOING AGENDA ITEMS  

Project Updates –  

• Western Meadows Phase 5 – Complete for the season. We will head back out in the spring to inspect the first lift of 

asphalt. We will also keep an eye on the gravel portion of Opal Lane to ensure it is traversable.  

• Knapp’s Landing Phase 1 and 2 –A punchlist has been sent to the developer. We have not heard back yet. 

• Turtle Creek Phase 1 – Punchlist items remain. 

• Vance Peterson – We sent a letter to Vance requesting a timeline on the repairs. No update yet. 

• 6th and Mundt Utility and Roadway Reconstruction – Survey will continue to collect information as needed. Construction 

documents are underway and we will coordinate a time and day to walk the site with Craig 

• Swenson Park 

o  Storm Shelter – Our architectural team is reviewing the project scope and grant application to put together a 

design proposal for the storm shelter. 

o Ball Fields – Fence and infield stakes have been set and the City crew have begun placing the Aglime.  

WASTEWATER FEASIBILITY  STUDY  

Steve and Rachel continue to have discussions with surrounding communities for the regionalization effort. Discussions have 

been ongoing with DANR and the County on potential funding for the facility. 

We are putting the final touches on the Facility Plan prior to its January 1st submitting to the DANR for submittal. We are waiting 

to hear from several governmental agencies on the cultural resources effects, which is not needed for the SRF application, only 

for the final package. Prior to design of the facility, the DANR will provide the City with its waste load allocation. Once we receive 

all the necessary information, we will present the final wastewater permit application before the Council to review. 

Aeromod and Vessco met with ISG, Craig, and Jesse on the 30th and for an in-depth presentation on the technology, features, 

and considerations as the City gets closer to beginning design of the facility.  Aeromod indicated that they will continue to 

provide presentations as the City moves through design. 

COMMUNITY  DEVELOPMENT AND DOWNTOWN PLAN  

The ISG team continues to incorporate public feedback and client guidance from the community and downtown groups. We are 

tentatively looking forward to a late January or early February public open house on the final draft of the community plan. From 

there, we’ll take the Community’s feedback and incorporate it into the plan. Then, the plan will be presented before the City 

Council and Planning and Zoning board.  



Memorandum  
 

 

101 South Reid Street + Suite 202 + Sioux Falls, SD 57103 

605.274.6401 + ISGInc.com 

Architecture + Engineering + Environmental + Planning 

To:  City of Hartford 

From:  ISG 

Date:  December 7, 2021 

Subject:  Proposed WRF Site Access 

cc:  Teresa Sidel 

 

INTRODU CTION  

The City of Hartford began to look at an updated Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) in 2017 in a Facility Plan prepared by 

Stockwell Engineers. The Plan considered a location for a new treatment facility, taking into effect the required setbacks from 

existing wells, residences, and floodplains. It was decided at that time that what is now Tract 1 and 2 of the Hartford Hills 

Addition was the optimal location for a new WRF. 

CURRENT SI TE  ACCE SS  

The City owned land is split into two tracts of land directly west of the intersection of Highway 38 and Interstate 90 at Exit 390.  

Tract 1 is adjacent to the interstate and directly south. The land is bounded by Interstate 90, Highway 38, and the ¼ Section 

line to the west. The tract is approximately 480’ wide, for an area of approximately 20.34 acres. There is currently a 50’ wide 

access easement from the southeast corner of the tract, along Highway 38 then 466th Avenue with an access off of 466th 

approximately 400’ south of the intersection of Highway 38 and 466th Avenue. 466th Avenue is currently paved from the 

intersection of 466th and SD-38 to the intersection of 466th and 261st St.  

Tract 2 is adjacent to the interstate to the north. It is triangular shaped and bounded by Highway 38, Interstate 90, and the ¼ 

Section line to the west. The tract is approximately 15.04 acres and is effectively split in two by an unnamed tributary to Turtle 

Creek. Site access for the land east of the creek currently is directly opposite of the intersection of 466 th and Highway 38. 

Access for the land west of the creek is currently being utilized by the adjacent gravel pit, through a separate piece of City-

owned land.  

FUTURE SI TE  ACC ESS  

Any future accesses along SD-38 must be permitted through the SD DOT. The Department has already indicated on the plat that 

they will allow the access shown on the plat from Tract 2, directly opposite of 466th St. The City will need to submit the required 

permits prior to improving the existing access.  

It is preferred by the City and has been their intention to access Tract 1 directly from SD-38. The City has reached out to the DOT 

and started discussions on moving the access from 466th Avenue. If not allowed by the DOT, the next preferrable access is 

directly onto SD-38 opposite the eastbound on/off ramp. If neither of these are permitted by the Department, the City will plan 

to utilize the access onto 466th Ave. Once site design commences, more information will be available to both the Department 

and the City.  





                                                              Maintenance Report – 12/7/2021 

 

December 3, 2021 

 

Streets  

      Roads – Next week I will be working on next year’s slurry seal project, getting the roads and 

figures to ISG. Nick with the City of Sioux Falls would like to have this information the middle of 

December so he can get the bid process going for next year’s project.  

     Equipment- All the equipment is running well at this time, and is ready for winter.        

      Street sweeping – The sweeper was out this week; we will keep sweeping as long as the 

weather holds.  

      Budget items – The plow has been ordered.       

        Traffic – The speed trailer is on HWY 38 for now. Amy wanted some traffic counts for that 

area, so we will leave it there for a few weeks.      

 

Water 

        Meters – We had a chance to work on meters yesterday and we are planning on hitting 

them hard next week.            

        Reports / DANR – The next quarterly residual report is due in January 2022. We are still 

waiting for our water inspection report from DANR.    

 

Sewer 

        Main list station – Nothing new at this time.   

         Reports – The October DMR has been sent in; the November DMR is not due until 

December 28th.  I will be filling the report out next week.          

         Sagehorn lift station – Everything is working well at this time.   

          Mickelson road lift station – Everything is working well at this time.          

         Future facility – We will be working with ISG on the next step.        

 



Park 

       Parks – The swings set in Lyon’s Park has been installed. Also, the boarder around Turtle 

Creek Park playground has been installed, so that project has been completed.          

        Dog Park – Nothing new at this time.  

        Leaf / branch site –Closed for the season.   

Bike Trail – Once we receive a go ahead for the new trail between Main and Feyder we will 

start clearing out some brush. We are hoping to get started on this soon.          

Sports complex – The infields are coming along well at the Sports Complex. We are hoping 

to have them finished next week. The fencing company is waiting for the back stop posts to 

arrive so they can get started. They hoping the posts will arrive the middle of December.           

Public Buildings – Nothing new at this time.  

Downtown – We are ready for Hometown Christmas.     

 



 

FINANCE OFFICER REPORT 

December 7, 2021 
 

Financials:  Below is a recap of revenue received for the month of November: 

 

State of South Dakota                  86,264.67  (1st Penny Sales Tax) 

State of South Dakota                  86,264.68  (2nd Penny Sales Tax) 

State of South Dakota                                11,300.26   (3rd Penny Sales Tax) 

Minnehaha County                                   547,235.10   (Real Estate Taxes) 

Minnehaha County                                     41,299.31   (Street Maintenance Fee) 

HADF                                                          31,250.00   (Reimburse ½ Cost of Community Develop Plan) 

Kristin Freese                                              10,000.00   (Bid for Open On-Sale Liquor License) 

Reede Construction                                      9,708.00   (Hydrant Meter Water) 

Misc.                                                           13,614.00   (Liquor License Renewal Fees) 

Misc.                                                                700.00   (Video Lottery Fees) 

Misc.          6,823.31   (Building/Flatwork Permits) 

Misc.                                                             7,500.00   (Water/Sewer Hookup Fees) 

Misc.                                                             1,050.00   (Sump Pump Permits) 

 

 

      Cash Balances as of                                      October 2020                            October 2021   

             Total General Fund                                          $999,536.33                           $1,858,375.93 

 

      Revenue and Expenses for the Month of:        October 2020                            October 2021          

           Revenue - General Fund          $  83,187.57                              $180,703.07 

             Expenses - General Fund              $334,977.50                              $160,256.81 

 

      Revenue and Expenses                               2020 Year-To-Date                  2021 Year-To-Date 

  Revenue - General Fund                   $2,026,619.14                            $2,312,241.58 

 Expenses - General Fund       $2,392,540.03                            $1,808,099.77 

 

 

Calendar of Events:            

December 2021: 

Tuesday, 7th        City Council Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

Wednesday, 8th            HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 

Sunday, 12th   HASR Meeting @ Pizza Ranch, 7pm 

Monday, 13th   Jamboree Meeting @ 6pm, Location TBD 

Tuesday, 14th   Planning & Zoning Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

Wednesday, 15th  HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 

Monday, 20th   Chamber Meeting @ 6:30pm, Location TBD 

Tuesday, 21st     Coffee with the Cops @ Stomping Grounds, 7am 

Tuesday, 21st      City Council Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

Wednesday, 22nd     HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 

Friday, 24th   Christmas Holiday – City Hall Closed 

Monday, 27th   Christmas Holiday – City Hall Closed 

Tuesday, 28th     Planning & Zoning Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

Wednesday, 29th  HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 

Friday, 31st   New Year’s Holiday – City Hall Closed 

 



   

12/07/2021                                   City Administrator Report 

 

 

Explanation of Agenda Items 

 

 

Visitors: 

• Bike/Rec Committee:  The Hartford Bike & Rec Committee held their last meeting on November 16th.  

They are dissolving the committee since the new Park & Rec Board will now oversee the bike trail system.  

Mayor Menning would like to recognize the following members that have been so active in the committee:  

Troy Laron, Warren DeCou, Kari Borns, Jenna Bathke, Devin Eidsness and Dave Larson.   

 

Applications, Agreements, Hearings, Resolutions & Ordinances: 

• 2nd Reading of Rezone Ordinance #720 (no change):  MASH Properties, LLC is currently in the process 

for purchasing Lot 10 (South of Hwy 38) of Smith & Grover’s Addition from Heart-Fjord Investments, Inc, 

along with 12,250 sf of Lot 7, Block 1 of Sunnyside Addition. They are wanting to erect a small ice cream 

shop on this land. Currently it is zoned residential but is an empty lot and has never been developed. One of 

the issues of developing Lot 10 is that it was land lock as a residential lot since the SD DOT does not like 

to grant access through town to residential lots. If this were to be rezoned as a commercial lot, access could 

be obtained. The developer is already working with the SD DOT to approve access to this lot if it were to 

be rezoned to commercial. The developer is also purchasing 12,250 sf from the owner of Lot 7 to allow the 

developer more room for their project. Even with the sale of this added footage, it still leaves enough 

square footage on Lot 7 (15,806sf) to keep this a legal residential lot. This went before the P&Z and the 

Board’s recommendation was to approve the rezone.  

 

• Review and Approve Resolution 2021-14 – Transfer of Contingency Funds:  This resolution would 

transfer funds from the city’s contingency account in our general fund to various other accounts in the 

general fund to cover any shortfalls in our general fund budget.  See enclosed Explanation in your packet. 

 

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #721 – 2021 Supplemental Appropriation:  This ordinance would supplement 

the city’s 2021 budget.  This would cover any unanticipated expenses, expenses added by the council 

throughout the year, or expenses that were unknown when the 2021 budget was adopted.  It covers 

expenses in our budget for large general funds expenses and those expenses from other funds.  See 

enclosed Explanation in your packet.  

 

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #722 -Redistricting of Voting Wards:  This ordinance would adopt 

Alternative #4 for the new voting wards. Alternative #4  keeps the current council members in the same 

ward but tried to make the lines between the wards a little more cleaner and took away an awkward portion 

in the middle of the city. It also allows for greater population growth in ward 3and some in ward 1 but still 

keeps our total deviation less than 10% as required by SDCL. SECOG has put together Ordinance #722 to 

adopt the new ward boundaries.    

 

• Cannabis Applications:  The city has received 6 cannabis applications from 4 applicants – 3 applications 

for dispensaries, 2 applications for cultivation sites and 1 application for a manufacturing site.  All 

applicants have submitted the application fees, required documentation and have meet with city staff to 

review. Staff does not see any issues with building layouts, operation hours, security, or waste disposal on 

any of the plans.  It looks like nothing will tax our water or wastewater system.   All applicants have been 

asked to attend the council meeting to address any questions from the Governing Board.  City ordinance 

allows for only 3 dispensaries but unlimited cultivation, manufacturing,  and testing establishments. Below 

is just a small summary of each plan and I have included a location map of each proposed business, along 

with a copy of our zoning and municipal ordinances that govern cannabis.   

o Dakota Canabliss (Cultivation, Manufacturing, and Dispensary License):  They have applied for a 

dispensary license, manufacturing license and cultivation license.  They plan to purchase a lot in the 

Western Meadows Industrial Park and put up 1 building for the cultivation/manufacturing facility and 

a separate building for the dispensary facility.  Construction of these buildings will begin as soon as 

possible if the applications are approved.  Currently this lot is one and is entirely zoned light industrial.  

If they are allowed to move forward with this plan, the lot will need to be split into 2 lots and the north 

½ (for the dispensary) will need to be rezoned to Community Commercial in order to comply with our 

zoning regulations.  The applicant is aware of this requirement and has indicated that this is their plan.  

If council wants to approve the dispensary application, it will have to be contingent that the lot is 

replatted into two lots and the north ½ is rezoned to community commercial. 



o Grow Farms (Cultivation License):  This applicant plans to lease the Bossman Storage unit that sits on 

the NE corner of  Kingsbury Avenue and South Street.  He will be renting the entire building that faces 

south and he plans to run just a cannabis cultivation operation at this site.  His plan is to use 

hydroponic technology which is a high-tech method of growing plants in water rich in mineral 

nutrients instead of soil.  The lot is zoned light industrial, so it meets our zoning regulations.  This 

applicant does need to file a “change of use” with the city since this building use is changing from the 

permitted use of storage units to the permitted use of cannabis cultivation – he was informed of this 

and has the paperwork to complete this.  The applicant plans to sell his product to both manufacturers 

and dispensaries.  He believes the first crop can be harvested in early summer of 2022. 

o Genesis Farms LLC (Dispensary License):  This applicant is just applying for a cannabis dispensary 

license. They plan to lease the property on the west side of Western Avenue between Tammen Auto 

and Ace Hardware.  They will be leasing the ground and then placing a new building upon it.  The 

general manager seems to have extensive experience in the cannabis field – working with several 

states.  The lot is zoned as community commercial and meets our zoning regulations.  If approved, they 

plan to be up and operating by fall of 2022. 

o HomeTown Budz LLC (Dispensary License):  This applicant is just applying for a cannabis dispensary 

license.  They have purchased a lot south of the sub-station along Western Ave, one lot off of Western 

and Opal Lane on the north side. This lot is zoned as community commercial and meets our zoning 

regulations. This applicant is part of a cannabis franchise.  If approved, they would like to start 

construction asap and are looking at an August 2022 opening timeframe.    

 

 

Old Business: 

• Request to release 2021 Budget Funds:  The following 2021 budget appropriations have not been paid 

out yet and are still on the city’s books.  If the council is going to approve payment of these budget funds, 

we need to do so in this calendar year.  The financials for each entity are enclosed per state requirements.  

The following is what was budgeted for 2021 to each entity… 

o Hartford Fire Department - $12,000 for operating funds 

o Hartford Senior Center - $9,000 for operating funds 

o Humboldt Ambulance - $22,500 for operating funds 

 

• Review Insurance Quotes:  In August, I reach out to 4 entities to quote the city’s insurance – SDPAA, 

Puthoff Insurance, Reliabank Insurance and State Farm.  State Farm was unable to match our current 

coverage, but I have received quotes from the remaining insurance carriers.  A comparison of the quotes is 

provided in the packet for your reference.   

 

• Mayor Appointments to Park & Rec Board:  The Mayor has informed me that he will have 

appointments ready for council consideration at this meeting.  Council may recall that the Board shall 

consists of 5 appointed members, with 1 non—voting city council representative and 1 non-voting city staff 

representative for a total of 7 members.  Logistically it makes sense to have the appointments start on 

January 1st since all budget funds are for 2022.   

 

New Business: 

o Discuss the possibility of  moving the Municipal Election Date:  A few months ago, it was brought up 

about possibly moving the city’s municipal election date to June in order to coincide the school’s election 

date.  Obviously, the advantage of having both the school and city election on one date and at one polling 

location would make it more convenient for voters. But I do have a few concerns with this… 

1. The school year runs from July 1 to June 30, which makes sense to have election at that time, but 

the city year runs from Jan 1 to Dec 31, so we would be bringing on new members mid-year. 

2. Although we can have the same voting venue, we still need to employee 2 separate boards and 

have separate ballots, which mean no cost savings.  It may also be confusing at first to some 

voters to change venues. 

3. We would have to do a couple of ordinance changes to change appointment times and pay dates. 

4. My biggest concern – Electing new council members in June, starting in July and then voting on a 

budget in August.  I don’t believe that it gives any new council member adequate time to truly 

understand the city’s financials and budget.  It is the council’s responsibility to make the best 

decisions for the city and I think the better prepared a new member is for voting on a budget is a 

great advantage. 

 

 

********************************************************************************* 

 

Non-Agenda Updates 

 



• Grant Updates: 

o Bike/Rec (no change) –  We received our award letter for $130,588 from the State – still waiting on the 

agreement, which should be here by the end of the year. 

o Storm Shelter – The City has been awarded the grant from FEMA for our storm shelter/RR/concession 

stand building.  The approved agreement has been signed and we are waiting on a notice to proceed.   I 

have asked ISG to put together a proposal for engineering services for this project for council to 

review. 

• Update on Stockwell Projects: 

o Mickelson Road:  Now that it is approved, we will have to send out notices to any affected property 

owners and then the project will finally be completed.   

o 9th Street and Ruud & Opal: Jon with Stockwell has done a one-year warranty inspection for both 

projects.  Letters with punch list items were sent out on September 30th on both projects.  A two-year 

warranty inspection will be conducted on the utilities next year.   

• Updates: 

o Upcoming Agenda Items 

▪ There will be several business items to address at our next meeting:  Renewal of contracts and 

appointment of P&Z members.    

▪ As we move forward with the WWTF, I have asked ISG to present to the council on an 

upcoming agenda the differences between Construction Management and Construction 

Management At Risk options.   

o Planning & Zoning Update – The P&Z Board will be working on updating our building codes from the 

ICC 2018 code to the 2021 codes.  Sioux Falls and Minnehaha County are currently finalizing their 

adoption and we want to start working on our review to keep codes as consistent as possible in the area 

for contractors.  Paul and I will take a few meetings to review with the P&Z Board any significant 

changes and gather their input.  Once they have done their review process, the city will need to pass an 

ordinance to update our codes. 

o Carpet for Office – 

▪ The 2022 Budget includes funds to replace the old and worn carpet in the front offices 

(Finance Office, Business Office, Water Office, Sheriff Dept and Chamber Office). We plan 

to replace them with the same carpet that was put in last year so all matches.  I have already 

contacted Thornton Carpet to ensure we can still get the same carpet, which we can.  I am 

having them work on a quote for us to ensure it’s still within budget and if so, I will probably 

order it right away for January before it gets discontinued.   

o Christmas Party – The city is planning to hold a Christmas Party this year and ISG has generously 

offered to help with this expense.  Right now, the date of Friday, January 14th has been secured for the 

Golf Course.  I believe we are looking at holding a 2-hour event from 6-8pm with drinks and light food 

to socialize.  Invitation will be sent out in the near future. 

o I would like to go into executive for personnel to discuss the candidates for the FT Building 

Inspector/Code Enforcer position.   

 

 

 

 

Call if you have any questions 605-528-6187 or 605-261-3995. 























Insurance Company Continential Western SDML Pool Ins.

Insurance Agency/Agent Puthoff Insurance Relibank Insurance SDML Pool State Farm

     Dave Puthoff Cole Grocott Ladene Bachtell (Gen Ins) Ty Teveldal

   General Liability $4,922.00 $4,591.00 $18,412.10 N/A

   Commercial Property $12,205.00 $15,953.00 $12,013.36 N/A

   Property incl. Inland Marine (Boat) $2,884.00 $4,639.00 Inc. N/A

   Commercial Auto $6,996.00 $14,423.00 $5,054.46 N/A

   Cyber Solutions Inc. $2,201.00 Inc. N/A

   Comm Crime/Employee Dishonesty $370.00 $104.00 Inc. N/A

   Umbrella Liability $1,417.00 $5,408.00 N/A (Covered under Auto) N/A

   Additional Items $460.00 $4,971.00 $247.58 N/A

(Employment Practices)

(Line Backer-Director & 

Officer Coverage) (Equip Breakdown)

Sub-Total $29,254.00 $52,290.00 $35,727.50 N/A

Credits (if any) -$2,519.08

Total $33,208.42

Notes: *No Property Exclusions *A few minor exclusions *A few minor exclusions

*Local Agent/Same Co. *Local Agent *Current Provider-No Issues
*Umbrella is for extra 

1M in Auto Coverage

*Umbrella is for extra 1M 

in Auto Coverage

*No Umbrella needed - a full 

2M is in current Plan

**Each Insurance Agent was given copies of our current policy and asked to quote the same coverage as we currently have


